
STREETS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
OCTOBER 4, 2016 

 
The Streets Committee meeting was held on October 4, 2016 at North Royalton City Hall, 14600 State Road. 
The meeting was called to order at 6:17 p.m. 
 
PRESENT: Committee Members: Chair Steve Muller, Vice Chair Larry Antoskiewicz, John Nickell; 
Council: Gary Petrusky, Dan Langshaw, Paul Marnecheck, Dan Kasaris; Administration: Mayor Robert 
Stefanik, Law Director Thomas Kelly, City Engineer Mark Schmitzer, Service Director Nick Cinquepalmi; 
Other: Lou Krzepina. 
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Mr. Antoskiewicz, seconded by Mr. Nickell to approve the September 6, 2016 Streets 
Committee minutes. Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. Motion carried.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
1. Issue 1 Funding 

Mr. Schmitzer said that both projects have been submitted and we are awaiting the results. 
 

2. North Royalton Alternative Transportation Study 
Mayor Stefanik said that the Police Department is in the process of contacting ODOT to see about the 
speed limit on State Road to see if we can lower it between City Hall and Rt. 82. He said that if we can 
lower it then we will consider putting in a larger berm as an alternative to trying to put in a sidewalk. He 
said that the sidewalk would be very expensive for the homeowners involved. Mr. Kasaris asked if we 
could do something similar to what the Metroparks does and put a curb between the street and the berm. 
Mayor Stefanik said that they would probably be damaged by the snow plows. He said that we are looking 
into several options such as traffic delineators, but said that the first thing we need to do is see if we can 
get the speed limit reduced.  
 

3. Service Department Report 
A copy of this report is attached to these minutes. Mr. Marnecheck asked what the problem was with the 
water main at Ridge and Julia. Mr. Cinquepalmi said that this is where the water was ponding. It was 
found that there was a leaky shut off valve. He said it has been repaired. Mr. Schmitzer said that he 
believes that this was the cause of the ponding and should eliminate most of this problem. He said that 
they are going to hire someone to take care of the precise grading of the asphalt to ensure that it drains 
properly. 
 

4. Outstanding punch list items 
Mr. Schmitzer said that the Ridge and Julia ponding issue was the last item on the punch list and should be 
taken care of by the next meeting. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked about the punch list for Cedar Estates. Mr. 
Schmitzer said that this punch list has been narrowed down from 4 pages to 1 ½ pages. He said that they 
have met with several residents and talked to them at length about their grass. Many residents are calling it 
“weeds” but we had an expert explain that it is actually a fescue. He said they are going to plug it and slit 
seed it. It will grab on and the Kentucky Blue Grass will take over. He said that all of the lawns will be 
reseeded, re-fertilized and re-watered. Mr. Antoskiewicz asked if all of the residents were satisfied with 
this plan. Mr. Schmitzer said that one resident is unhappy and insists that the lawn should be 100% 
Kentucky Blue Grass. He said that we will revisit this in the spring and leave it up to the contractor as to 
how they want to proceed if the homeowner is still unhappy. Mr. Nickell asked about the trees. Mr. 
Schmitzer said that there were two or three trees that needed attention. He said that a subcontractor is 
going to trim any dead branches and if necessary re-mulch around some of the trees. He said that some of 
the homeowners where mounding the mulch too high on the tree which will choke the tree and kill it. We 
have explained this to the homeowners and have shown them what needs to be done. He said that we still 
have another year left on the warranties for the trees. Mr. Muller asked for an update on the Abbey Road 
driveways. Mr. Schmitzer said that we are finalizing what we want to get to Karvo next week and then 
they will have the work finished before Thanksgiving. He said that there are 26 aprons total. Mr. Kasaris 



Streets Committee October 4, 2016 Page 2 
 

asked if applies to the hill as well. Mr. Schmitzer said yes, it includes all the catch basins that have 
adjustments on Akins, Goodman and Hawley. Mr. Kasaris asked if they will be installing new catch basins 
and curbs. Mr. Schmitzer said that they are adjusting them.  
 

5. Bennett Road 
No update. 
 

6. 2016 Infrastructure Program 
Mr. Schmitzer said that Prince Charles was being final paved today. This was the last of the roads that 
needed final surface course other than Donmar. He said that he has met with the contractor for the cement 
stabilization of the cul-de-sac area on Donmar. He said that he is also working with the Service 
Department to make sure that the size and configuration for the cul-de-sac is what we want. The contractor 
plans on starting this work next week.  
 
Mr. Kasaris asked Mr. Schmitzer if he has heard from Cleveland Water about the issue of water on Lytle 
Road. Mr. Schmitzer said he has not been down there since they made the report. He said that once the 
work is done, they plan on having Specialized Construction come in and patch it the correct way. Mr. 
Kasaris asked what caused this. Mr. Schmitzer said that when you look at aerial photos you can see a patch 
right there in the road. It passed the proof roll, so we figured everything was fine but found out that there 
was indeed a leak.  
 
Mr. Petrusky said on State Road where there was the water main break between Bunker and Sprague, there 
is still a hump in the road. He asked if Cleveland Water is going to fix this or will it settle eventually. Mr. 
Schmitzer said that he will take a look at it and follow up with Cleveland Water to see what they are going 
to do. Mr. Cinquepalmi said that normally the city fixes the water digs anyway. He said that he too will 
look at it and address it if needed.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Fuel Bid – 2nd year option 

Mr. Cinquepalmi said this is through the consortium that we belong to and he said that they have no 
problems with this supplier.  
 
Mr. Petrusky asked how full is the salt barn; are we ready if we have an early snow. Mr. Cinquepalmi said 
that due to the mild winter last year, we did not use all of the salt that we bid on, so we have to take 
possession of 80% of that amount. We are on the hook to purchase 3,000 tons from last year. He said that 
we have about 900 tons in the barn and by the end of the week, the barn will be filled because we need to 
take possession of this 3,000 tons by the end of October. He said that he is going to try to stock 600 to 800 
tons at the service yard. This means that of the 3,000 tons, we need to put 2,200-2,300 tons at the old 
compost facility. He said that he met with the trucking company yesterday to make sure that there are no 
problems getting the trucks into that location. He said that we should start the season with over 4,000 tons 
of salt. He said that this is half of what we typically use for an entire winter. Mr. Cinquepalmi briefly 
reviewed the status of the fleet and equipment.  
 
Moved by Mr. Muller, seconded by Mr. Nickell to remove the fuel bid out of committee and 
recommend approval to Council. Roll Call: Yeas: 3. Nays: 0. Motion carried. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
Moved by Mr. Nickell, seconded by Mr. Antoskiewicz to adjourn the October 4, 2016 meeting. Yeas: 3. 
Nays: 0. Motion carried. Meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m.  
 



Street Department & Storm Water Department Monthly Report – September 2016 
 
9/1/16-THUR. 
Catch Basins-Cinnamon Lakes continue to work on our basins [5 total]. 
Joint Repair- Chesapeake Dr. 
Compost Building- clean out and get things set up for the auction.  
Rec. Dept.-sent one guy down to help out. 
 
9/2/16-FRI. 
Catch Basins-Cinnamon Lakes continue to rebuild basins. 
Landscaping-Top soil, seed and straw all of our recent concrete jobs. 
Signs-unfurl all the flags throughout the city. Replace traffic lights per N.R.P.D. 
 
9/6/16-TUES. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
Ditching-8555 Akins. 
Catch Basins-Cinnamon Lakes. 
Signs-fixed two flags that snapped. Also water our landscaping job along Bennett Rd. by old city hall and the fire station. 
 
9/7/16-WEDS. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
Culvert Pipe-8013 Ridgedale remove old pipe install new pipe, we will pour the apron Thursday. 
Catch Basins-Lexington ct. and Sunset ov. Rip out and rebuild basins. 
Signs-fixed traffic lights per N.R.P.D.; also picked up items for the auction and set them up in the compost building. 
 
9/8/16-THUR. 
Concrete-we poured Cinnamon Lakes [3 basins] also poured the apron at 8013 Ridgedale. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
Catch Basins-continue repairs on Lexington ct. and sunset ov. 
 
9/9/16-FRI. 
Catch Basins-finish the work on the basins, set up for the pour today. 
Concrete-pour the catch basins at Sunset ov & Lexington ct., start ripping out a section on Villa Grande. 
Asphalt-install two strips in front of new aprons. Also grind out and lay an asphalt strip on Ridge between both Wallings. 
 
9/12/16-MON. 
Asphalt-installed asphalt around the basins in cinnamon lakes then continued our joint repair Chesapeake Dr. 
Concrete- finish ripping out and poured a slab on Villa Grande. In the afternoon set the crew over to Hillary Dr. 
Mowing-start cutting and weed whacking around our guardrails  
  
9/13/16-TUES. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
Concrete-finish ripping out 12164 Hillary Dr. [2 slabs] and did the pour in the afternoon. 
Mowing-continue cutting and weed whacking our guardrails. 
Heasley Field-ripping out a section in front of the dumpster [the heavy garbage truck keeps rutting it up]. 
 
9/14/16-WEDS. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr.  
Concrete- 12204 Hillary Dr. continue to rip out, the rain prevented us from pouring. 
Heasley Field-continue to set up for concrete pour; we were not able to pour due to rain. 
Note—The rain came at the perfect time we were able to send all of crews up to City Hall for a traffic class. 
 
 



9/15/16-THUR. 
Concrete-poured the concrete pad at Heasley Field, we will asphalt overlay Friday. 
Culverts Pipe’s-12247 Albion Rd. rip out and install the new pipe. Set up for asphalt Friday. Also same crew installed a 
pipe at 15462 State Rd. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr. 
 
9/16/16-FRI. 
Concrete-poured 2 slabs at 12164 Hillary Dr. 
Asphalt-installed the apron at 12247 Albion Rd. then sent the same crew over to Heasley Field for the asphalt overlay. 
Mowing-retention basins. 
 
9/19/16-MON. 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr 
Concrete-Hillary Dr. poured 13yds. Then sent the crew to Villa Grande to rip two slabs. 
Catch Basins-Quail Oval rip-out rebuild catch basin 
Mowing-retention basins 
 
9/20/16-TUES. 
Joint repair-Chesapeake Dr 
Concrete-Villa Grande-rip-out and set up  
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr 
Landscaping 
Mowing 
 
9/21/16-Wed 
Joint Repair-Chesapeake Dr 
Concrete-Villa Grande-Poured 11yds rip-out set up Ridge Line Dr 
Lodge Retention- Cleaned concrete troughs 
Landscaping 
 
9/22/16-Thurs 
Joint Repair-North Star Dr 
Concrete-Ridge Line Dr-Poured 9yds-poured catch basin at Quail Oval 
Landscaping 
 
9/23/16-Fri 
Joint Repair-North Star Dr 
Concrete-Cemetery Rip-out and set up poured 6yds in the apron for the entrance into the cemetery 
Ditching-State Rd 
 
9/26/16-Mon 
Joint Repair- North Star Dr 
Concrete- Rip-out set up Ridge Line Dr 
Mowing-weed whacking next to guard rails 
Sinkhole-4901 Brookhaven Flooded hole and located leak 
 
9/27/16-Tues 
Joint Repair-North Star Dr 
Concrete-Ridge Line Dr-Finished forming poured 2 slabs 20yds-moved to Hillary rip-out and set up 
Mowing –weed whacking next to guard rails 
 
 
 



9/28/16-Wed 
Joint Repair- North Star DR 
Concrete-Hillary Dr-rip-out set up 
Concrete- Julia/Ridge Rd- graded and poured concrete to grade for water main repair 
  
9/29/16-Thurs 
Joint Repair – North Star Dr-  
Asphalted water main repair at Julia/Ridge Rd 
Concrete- set up poured 15yds at Hillary Dr / set up another slab to be poured on Hillary Dr   
Catch basin-5880 Bunker saw cut rip –out start to rebuild                                                                        
Mowing- Retention Basins 
 
9/30/16 Fri 
Concrete- Ridge line Dr rip- out and set up 
Catch basin-9192 Potomac rip-out hydro excavate back side of double catch basin 
Mowing –retention basins 
Safety meeting City Hall 9am-11am 
 
 
 
 


	100416 Streets Minutes
	100416 Streets Minutes - EXHIBIT

